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Questions and Answers – 2
Q: What type of contract award is anticipated?

A: See L.8 (page 36) of the Request for Proposals (RFP).

Q: What is meant by “Facilities Capitol Cost of Money (FCCM)”?

A: FCCM is defined at FAR 31.205-10 (see link below). (http://acquisition.gov/far/current/html/Subpart%2031_2.html#wp1095552)

Q: The RFP refers to the STIPDG as having been in existence for almost two decades.  Who is the most recent contractor and/or major subcontractors?

A: The most recent previous contractor for this procurement was the Center for Transportation Training, Education and Research, Inc. (CTTER).  Any information regarding subcontractors will have to come from the prime contractor.

Q:  Will the Program Coordinator be provided with workspace at the Department of Transportation facilities?

A: No, the Program Coordinator will not be provided workspace at the DOT facilities.

Q: Please confirm that NO past performance narrative is to be included in Section C – Past Performance.

A: No past performance narrative is to be included in Section C – Past Performance.

Q: Section C, Task A.2 (page 4) indicates that the contractor shall be responsible for contact information for all interns, “… and be able to respond to all intern related emergencies, including, but not limited to, medical and personal emergencies.”  Please clarify the contractor’s responsibility to respond to medical and personal emergencies.  
A: The contractor is responsible for responding to medical and personal emergencies in a responsible, logical, and expeditious manner.  FHWA does not expect the contractor to provide EMS services.

Q: Section C, Task C.4 (page 7) indicates that stipend payments must be made no less than bi-weekly.  Would FHWA consider a semi-monthly pay cycle instead?

A: A semi-monthly pay cycle would be acceptable.

Q: What is the anticipated start date of the contract?

A: FHWA hopes to have this contract awarded as soon as possible.  For proposal purposes, offerors shall use February 1, 2008, as the planned start date.  The actual contract start date may be later than February 1, 2008.

Q: Section G.9 (page 17) discusses fixed labor rates and labor categories; however, Section L.8 (page 36) indicates that a cost plus fixed fee contract is anticipated.  Please clarify.

A: FHWA anticipates awarding a cost reimbursement or cost plus fixed fee contract.  Therein, the labor rates are fixed as proposed/negotiated until such time that they are modified as allowed by the contract.
Q: Section G.10 (page 17) indicates that the contractor shall obtain exemption from state and local room taxes incurred while traveling; however, some states do not allow an exemption based on working under contract for the U.S. Government.  Please provide information on other provisions that will allow contractor personnel to claim exemption from state and local taxes.

A: The contractor shall obtain exemptions from state and local room taxes incurred whenever possible.  FHWA acknowledges that this is not always possible.  More information on states that provide some form of tax exemption for travel can be found at: http://www.gsa.gov/Portal/gsa/ep/contentView.do?P=MTT&contentId=16366&contentType=GSA_OVERVIEW.
Q: Section L.9 indicates that Part I – Offer shall include Section B, with completed prices, and that Part 1 – Offer shall be included in the same binder with Part II – Technical/Staffing.  Please confirm this is correct.

A: This is correct.

Q: How many mentors should offerors assume will attend the mentor training in person and how many via telephone conference?  

A: Offerors should assume for proposal purposes that there will be 100 interns, therefore, 100 mentors.  At headquarters in Washington, DC offerors should assume 50 mentors will attend the training, and 50 mentors via telephone conference.  The actual number may be higher or lower.
 

Q: How many pages does FHWA envision in the Program Guide for Mentors?  How many copies are to be produced?  Is there a previous draft?    

A: There is no maximum or minimum number of pages required.  The content should include at a minimum:  program overview; objectives of the program; contacts - STIPDG coordinators of each Operating Administration, program administrators, and personnel; roles and responsibilities of mentors and interns; itinerary of program events and activities; program details; reporting requirements; standard forms (e.g., program evaluations, time sheet, leave request, travel advance request, reimbursement request, field trip request, etc.); frequently asked questions; etc. 

Sufficient copies shall be produced for mentors and STIPDG program coordinators of each Operating Administration.  For proposal purposes, offerors should assume 115 copies will be required.  The actual number of copies may be higher or lower.  Upon contract award, FHWA will provide a sample Program Guide for Mentors.
 

Q: How many pages does FHWA envision being in the Intern Evaluation Summary Report at the end of the 10-week program which contains their biographical sketches, evaluations, activities, and written report and summary of achievements?  How many copies are to be produced?  Will the contractor be responsible for copyediting the students' written reports?  Will the contractor be responsible for reviewing the students' written reports for accuracy or appropriateness? 

A: The number of pages will depend on the number of interns.  The specific number of copies to be produced will be determined at a later date; however, no more than eight copies is anticipated to be required.  No copyediting of students’ written reports is required.  The contractor is responsible for reviewing the students’ written reports for appropriateness and making suggestions for improvement.

 

Q: The RFP refers to a number of telephone conferences with field mentors and/or interns lasting up to 4 hours.  Will these conferences include visual presentations that the remote participants need to view?  
A: A hard or electronic copy of the document that will be discussed during the telephone conferences shall be provided to field mentors and interns prior to the scheduled call.  

Q: The RFP refers to a database to be maintained by the contractor.  Is it FHWA’s intent that the contractor would maintain a new database with no previous data, a new database with previous data imported into the new database, or an existing database? 
A: The contractor will maintain a new database with no previous data.

Q: In what format(s) or in what type of database is the applicant data for previous years? 

A: Microsoft Access and/or Excel

Q: Will the contractor have to prepare reports that require applicant data from previous years? 

A: No.

 

Q: What method or format does the Government intend to give the contractor the information to be housed in the contractor-maintained applicant database? 

A: Microsoft Access and/or Excel.
 

Q: How many mentors and other Federal staff will attend the welcome event in Washington DC? 

A: The number will depend on how many interns are selected for positions in the Washington, DC metro area.  For proposal purposes, offerors should assume 30 mentors, 50 interns, and 20 staff members.  The actual number of attendees may be higher or lower.

 

Q: How many mentors and other Federal staff will call into the welcome teleconference event? 

A: The number will depend on how many interns are selected for participation in the program.  For proposal purposes, offerors should assume 30 mentors, 50 interns, and 10 staff members.  The actual number of attendees may be higher or lower.

Q: In addition to the interns, how many individuals does FHWA anticipate will attend the Career Fair and DOT Administrators Ceremony? 

A: For proposal purposes, offerors should assume 30 individuals besides the interns for Career Fair and 15 individuals besides the interns for the DOT Administrators Ceremony.  The actual number of attendees may be higher or lower.
 

Q: How many booths and federal staff does FHWA anticipate will be at the Career Fair? 

A: For proposal preparation purposes, offerors should assume 8 booths and 20 staff members.  The actual number of booths and staff may be higher or lower.
 

Q: In addition to the interns, how many individuals does FHWA anticipate will attend the Final Awards Ceremony? 

A: For proposal preparation purposes, offerors should assume 15 individuals, in addition to the interns, will attend.  The actual number of attendees may be higher or lower.
Q: How many people does FHWA expect to attend the Oral Presentations and Moot Court?

A: For proposal preparations purposes, offerors should assume 10 individuals will attend the oral presentations and 8 individuals will attend the moot court, in addition to the interns.  The actual number of attendees may be higher or lower.
Q: Page 8 (C.6): This requirement indicates that the contractor shall procure appropriate housing for the interns.  In order to ensure the housing meets the requirements of the RFP, travel to some of the locations may be necessary.  Will the government allow travel expenses (in accordance with the Federal Travel Regulations) for contractors to travel to these sites to assess housing options for students?   

A: The $250,000 plug number for travel does not include any contractor travel.  If an offeror anticipates contractor travel, it should include that as a separate line item in its budget.  
Q: Is the $250,000 budget for intern transportation per year or for the life of the contract?
A: The $250,000 is the estimated travel costs for each year.
Q: Page 43 (L.9.D): This indicates that approximately 50 students will need to be brought to the DC area for two weeks at the end of the intern period.  Are the costs associated with this included in the $250,000 travel allocation?  Or are these costs to be included in the housing costs?   

A: The travel costs to bring the 50 field inters are included in the $250,000 travel allocation per year.  Offerors should budget for the housing of these students in the Washington, DC area as part of their housing costs. 

Q: Should contractor expect to provide students with reimbursement of local daily transportation costs for their commute to and from their internship sites?  

A: No. 

Q: Page 42 of the RFP refers to an Attachment H – Labor Rates Matrix.  No Attachment H was provided as part of the solicitation.

A: FHWA does not have a specific format for the Labor Rates Matrix.  Offerors should include a chart which clearly shows the labor rates for each labor category per year. 
Q: The last paragraph of page 37 states that proposal cover sheets, cover letter/executive summary, parts I and II should be placed in the same binder and that part III shall be in a separate binder.  The introduction stipulates that there are to be 7 sets (1 original + 6 copies).  Please clarify how many binders should be submitted.
A: Offerors should submit 14 total binders.  Seven binders (1 original + 6 copies) of Part I and II, where each binder should contain Part I and Part II, and seven binders (1 original + 6 copies) of Part III.  In summary, offerors should submit 7 (1 original + 6 copies) complete sets of the proposal.
Q: How should the students’ compensation be classified.  Should it be considered salary or stipend?

A: FHWA has no preference whether the contractor classifies the students’ compensation as a salary or stipend.  Contractors should ensure that earnings for social security and any required Federal, State, and local taxes are withheld, as well as workers’ compensation.

Q: What employment status is favored for the students?  Should the students be considered employees or 1099 special cases?

A: FHWA has no preference.  Contractors should ensure that earnings for social security and any required Federal, State, and local taxes are withheld, as well as workers’ compensation.
Q: What is the historical staffing profile for this effort?

A: For information regarding the historical staffing profile, offerors should reference the Draft RFP for this procurement.  One will notice that this information has been deleted in the actual RFP because FWHA now feels that offerors should be given the opportunity to propose based on how their organization could most effectively, efficiently, and appropriately complete this contract.

Q: Page 19 (H.4) indicates that the contractor shall submit an IT Security Plan and within 6 months submit proof of IT Security Accreditation.  The nature of the work does not seem to require system interfaces to government equipment.  Does this IT Security Plan pertain to contractor equipment used in support of the STIPDG program such as desktop computers?  Who will perform this Accreditation?

A: An IT Security Plan is required because the contractor will have access to the interns’ personally identifiable information.  FHWA will work with the contractor to perform the Accreditation.
